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•p «p«ti rMntuM fib* IBM test «&< 
found tbM tt vn not «Bly invalidly idmln- 
Mmt, but invalidly tuterprstod. In fool, It 
d»wd deception.

la November IMS, Ruby granted a filmed 
tntervtow to tbs pre**; he was scbsdulsd for 
retrial in February. Bo said: Iwyttlag 
pertaining to etutl happened bee mt# 
borne to the surface The world will new 
know the true facts of what occurred: my 
motive. . . .“ He added, “. . . |T)bo people 
who (have] . . . eo much to gain . . . 
|will) never let the true tecta . . . come 
... to the world." Unless the Kennedy 
investigation la punned further, Huby may 
turn out to be right; be wae for 18 year*

Belina individual error* could be docu­
mented further, but hia major charge* alto 
require response. Belin complain* that the 
Warren Commission did not bare Ite day in 
Court; he waa not permitted to testify in 
public session in the Commission * defense. 
Belin was given an opportunity to appear in 
executive session at* by deposition; ho could 
have made bl* deposition publie. Other 
Warren Commission lawyers, including its 
general counsel, followed this procedure. AU 
members of the Commission and the gen­
eral counsel, in fact, appeared before the 
Committee in public session, aomethlng 
Belin knows, since be appeared with former 
President Ford, a member of the Oommls- 
alon. Belin was not called as a witness in a 
public session because a review of hl* work 
showed that he had little to offer. He did 
not play a key role in the work of the Com­
mission. His testimony about the facta of 
the assassination was aeoondband. The 
Committee preferred Its facts firsthand.

Next, Belin offers a theory as to why the 
Committee went wrong; he blarney it on the 
staff and that the Committee's work was 
conducted in secret.

I have been associated with the work of 
Congressional Committees for almost twenty 
years. No Committee that I have ever worked 
with was more democratic, knowledgeable, or 
more In control of its own processes than 
the Select Committee. Indeed, the Select 
Committee waa probably more democratic, 
knowledgeable, and more tn control of tts 
processes than was the Warren Commission. 
Witness the dissent* to the work of the 
Committee, but not the Commission. I make 
that Judgment based oa a two-year study of 
the Warren Commission and personal experi­
ence with the Select Committee. When did 
Belin conduct a similar study of the Com­
mittee? He has,not even read our report.

Belin's secrecy comment, is ironic. The 
Warren Commission held one day of public 
bearings. Belin, who was Executive Director 
of the Rockefeller Commission, was not able 
to persuade his own Commission to do better. 
The Select Committee held almost forty 
days of public hearings on the evidence 
gathered In tts two-year investigation of the 
Kennedy and King cases, where the Com­
mittee’s work was open to public scrutiny. 
Each of ths Issues be criticizes were, In fact, 
raised in public bearings.

The Committee's investigation was not 
held entirely in public for obvious reasons. 
Classified information was involved. Reputa­
tions were at stake. The Committee bad a 
duty, under House Rules, to evaluate Its 
evidence before it was made public. Belin 
knows the character of the allegations in 
the Kennedy case. Even though many of the 
allegations have proven to be irresponsible, 
they had to be checked out, first eonfiden- 
UaDy. Would be have had the Committee do 
otherwise?

Last, Belin grumbles that the Committee 
made up its mind at the last minute. The 
Committee had the basic acoustical evidence 
in July. It knew then what it portended. It 
aU depended on what the final verdict of 
the scientists was. That earns in November. 
When should the Committee have made up

tt* mind, except at tbs and when all th* #vi- 
foncs wa* tn?

When President ford appeared before the 
Committee be waa asked why th* work of the 
Warren Commission bad fallen on such hard 
times Pint, th* formsr President said that 
its critic* bed “deliberately er negligently 
misled th* American people by misstating 
fact* and omitting crucial tecta....” Second, 
be suggested that many people were cynical 
Third, he observed that people had not read 
th* report.

The Select Committee should be accorded, 
at least from former Warren Oommlisioii 
■tall members, the same they themselve* 
would have wished to have received. I sug­
gest that Mr. Belin should heed the advtoe 
of hl* client.

Sincerely,
O Robot Blskxt, 

Profeuor of Lair, Cornell Low School.
(Former Chief Counsel and Staff Direc­

tor. Select Committee on Assassina­
tions.)

THX JFK OoXSTIXlCT Thxobt DoxsnT 
Hold Dr

(By Shanin Specter)
Th* House AssaasinattoUB Committee we* 

charged with Informing the American public, 
once and for all, of the facte of the murders 
of John Kennedy and Martin Luther King. 
Tert. It appear* their report will only exacer­
bate the very problem* the committee sought 
to eradicate: lingering public concern and 
doubt over these watershed events of the 
troubling I960* and mistrust in the ability 
of the government to find an answer to the 
argument over who killed John Kennedy.

The big story of the House report la the 
conclusion that President Kennedy was 
“probably assassinated as a result of a con­
spiracy.“ What 1* the evidence for this con­
clusion? The only hard evidence of a second 
gunman 1* the result* of a complex acoustic* 
study.

The study was conducted on a scratchy 
recording that was made when a police 
motorcycle whose microphone was stuck open 
transmitted the sound* of the assassination 
to the police radio tape at the Dallas police 
headquarters. The study concluded that of 
the dozens of impulses on the tape, four of 
these impulses represent foots fired at the 
presidential limousine: ths first, second and 
fourth from Oswald's lair and the third from 
the grassy knoU. Prom this, the conspiracy 
conclusion waa "born.

Although the acoustics study is a aclentl- 
ficaJly-derlved body of data, there is little 
precedence indicating how to contextualize 
this arcane evidence in light of the other 
evidence. That MFwlthorift the benefit of the 
application ofjtfnllar studies In the past, how 
do we evslustejte possible defects and judge 
tts relative ?N®bt among all the evidence?

The other evidence Is sharply inconsistent 
with the Acoustics study. Neither a second 
gunman nor his gun was seen by the more 
than 100 persons tn position to see. His 
Identity or possible involvement with Oswald 
has never been discovered.

No known Impact was made by the bullet 
upon the presidential limousine, its occu­
pants or anyone or anything else, even 
though Its target was only about 38 yards 
away. Although this series of non-entttles 
does not prove there was no second gunman, 
It does put Into perspective the quantity of 
evidence of a conspiracy. .

It is interesting to note that the evidence 
that Oswald acted alone is so strong that the 
House Committee's draft final report, written 
before the testimony of the acoustics experts, 
stated that “there Is insufficient evidence to 
find there was a conspiracy."

While the evidence of a conspiracy Is ten­
uous. the evidence that Oswald was the
assassin is Irrefutable. To the committee's seconds. Speaking before the House Assas-

photographic, tbrsoSc and trajectory .tadta'

boosts. both fired by Oswald.
It Should be noted that tbeae stadia* wore 

precisely those sought by critic* of the km*
***a**ln viewpoint. Thus, though th* com­
mittee'* ooocluadoc wa* “•onspiracy,” the 
preponderance of Ite finding*, including af­
firmation of th* single-bullet tb*ory, are 
consistent with th* Warren Oommiaatoe'* 
findings.

Furthermore, th* term “conspiracy" has 
unwarranted ominous Implication*. The term 
conspiracy ha* widely varying meaning*, 
most of which connote an tnstltuUonaJly 
baaed effort, for this, thare la no evidence. 
While collusion to break th* law' la. in legal 
terms, a conspiracy, the purpose of the House 
Assassination* Committee wa* to Inform u*
on the facte of th* assassination. By the use 
of the term conspiracy, th* committee does a 
disservice to the understanding of the Amer­
ican public.

Beyond the need to place the acoustics 
•vidence in proper perspective, there 1* a real 
question as to whether the evidence t* de­
pendable. While th* acoustics expert* ware 
asked only to Isolate which Impulses on the 
tape were shots and whether their origin was 
the grassy knoll or the Texas School Book 
Depository, their conclusions imply a sce­
nario of the assassination. That i*. the tape 
provide* a tlmeplec* for the assassination.

The acoustic* anaiysl* hold* that the sec­
ond *bot occurred LAS second* after the first, 
the third BBS seconds after the second and 
fourth 32 seconds after the third.

Because of the Zapruder film, a motion 
picture of the assassination, wa* running at 
18.3 frames per second and because President 
Kennedy was struck In the bead by the 
fourth shot In frame 313, one can count back­
ward and closely approximate the moments 
in the film when the other shot* were fired.

If the acoustics expert* were wrong about 
which Impulses were shots, they stand a good 
chance of being wrong tn stating which 
impulses were Shots and from where they 
originated. Thus, if we are to accept this 
study—and with tt, the conspiracy conclu­
sion—then we must accept the scenario of the 
assassination it necessarily Implies. There are 

"three major problems with this scenario.
First, the committee has concluded that 

the second shot was the One that passed 
through both President Kennedy and Gov­
ernor Connally. Although the evidence 1* Ir­
refutable that one bullet did do this. It could 
not have been fired at this time. According 
to the acoustics study, the second shot oc­
curred 6.65 seconds before the fourth.

A little multiplication and subtraction 
yields the conclusion that the second shot 
should have impacted at or near frame 191. 
A look at frame 191 and those surrounding It 
shows that Governor Connally's wrist was 
well above his chest, almost to his neckline, 
at this moment. But, the bullet exited ap­
proximately 4 inches below his right nipple 
and entered his wrist travelling downward. 
Fifteen or so frame later. Connally's wrist Is 
substantially lower. It Is at this point,, or 
Somewhat later, when Connally is obliterated 
from view by a sign, that tt is likely be was 
*h6V

Second, the acoustics study concludes that 
two shots were fired from the area of Os­
wald's perch within 1.66 seconds of each 

•other. Unless there were two gunmen firing 
from the window (a frighteningly compli­
cating concept for which there Is no evi­
dence), we must conclude that Oswald fired 
those two shots.

FBI expert testimony to the Warren Com­
mission indicated that Oswald rifle could 
not be realmed and refired In less than 23
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Muttou Committee on Doc. *9, 1971. Chief 
Counsel Blakey Mid: “Preliminary tart* are 
efficient to Mat into Mitous doubt Um pre* 
vioualy established Uma and totemic.” That 
evening the committee reached Ita conclu­
sion. Blakey believed that tecta not yet con­
ducted wouM demonstrate that Oswald 
could have fired twice with a Mt on the 
eecond ahot within IB# seconds.

However, to an interna) memorandum to 
committee member# dated March 22, 1279, 
Blakey atated that of six teat shooters, in­
cluding “tour expert marksmen,” fixing a 
total of 85 shells, “no one achieved thia de­
gree of proficiency.” Thus, not only does it 
appear unlikely that Ovwald fired twice with 
a Mt on the eecond ahot within 1.06 aeoonda, 
it may be humanly impossible to do ao. If 
Oswald did not fire those shots, then the 
impulses thought to be shots were not shots. 
This simply negates the credibility of the 
acoustics study and its conclusions.

Third, a reconstruction to 1964 by the 
Warren Commission showed that between 
frames 166 and 210 there was an oak tree 
whose branches and leaves obscurred Os­
wald's view of Ms target, except for a brief 
opening at frames 185-186. As was noted 
above, the acoustics study places the eecond 
shot at frame 191.

Thus, the acoustics study necessarily im­
plies that Oswald fired blindly and Mt his 
target. Thia illogical behavior Is magnified 
when one considers that Oswald had an un­
impeded stretch of approximately 100 yards 
and several seconds to which to kill the 
.President, beginning a mere second later.

. It seems clear that the necessary Implica­
tions of the acoustics study are not con­
sistent with a reasonable scenario of the 
assassination of President Kennedy. Thus, It 
appears doubtful that the acoustics experts 
were correct in concluding that a shot origi­
nated from the grassy knoll.

Why did the committee conclude there 
was a conspiracy? Congressman . Robert 
Edgar, a dissenter from the conclusion, may 
have put it best when he said: “We did a 
great Job up to the last moment, when in our 
focus on the acoustics we failed to give 
proper weight to other findings of the 
investigation.”

(Spanin Specter assisted Congressman 
Robert Edgar to his work on the House As­
sassinations Committee. He Is the son of 
Arlen Specter, the former Philadelphia Dis­
trict Attorney and counsel to the Warren 
Commission, which investigated the Ken­
nedy assassination.)

Cornell Law School, 
Tthaca, N.Y„ July 30,1179.

Mr. Edwin Outhkax,
Kittor, The Philadelphia Inquirer, 
Philadelphia, Pa.

Diab Ma. Guthmax: -Shanin Spector’s 
piece ("The JFK Conspiracy Theory Does 
Not Hold Up,” (7/23/79)) does an Injustice 
to the work of the Select Committee on As- 

wasslnatlons; It also raises questions about his 
objectivity and competence.

1
The continued, almost exclusive concen­

tration by Spector and others on the con­
spiracy conclusions of the Select Commit­
tee Ignores other important findings and 

- recommendations. The Committee also con­
cluded, for example, that no governmental 
agency, foreign or domestic, was involved 
in either the President’s or Dr. King's mur­
der; and It made a variety of valuable rec­
ommendations. including the preparation of 
a “White Paper” by the Departmer* «* Jus­
tice to settle doubts about the 
study, and the enactment of chart 
tlon by the Congress to preven 
harassment campaign by the FA 
to that conducted against Dr. K!

Spector's piece also misstates the Ken­
nedy conspiracy conclusion; R did not. to 
tact, rest on the acoustical study alone. The 
Final Report explicitly premises the con­
clusion on four factors: 1) an inadequate 
1964 conspiracy investigation -that precludes 
zsllanoe today on Ito no conspiracy finding; 
2) a finding of associates, who had the mo­
tive to murder the President, of Oswald and 
Ruby who were unknown or unappreciated 
by the Warren Commission; 8) the inability 
of the Committee to rule out the complicity 
of certain Individuals; and 4) the scientific 
fact of two shooters. Reading Spector's piece, 
I wonder if be read the Final Report, an 
indispensable prerequisite to discussing it, 
much less criticising it.

zu
Contrary to Spector’s assertion, no evi­

dence is “sharply inconsistent” with the 
acoustical study. Proving that Oswald ahot 
the President, does not prove that another 
was not also involved. In addition, It la a 
half-truth to say that no one “saw” the 
second gunman. In fact, a policeman, a 
Secret Service Agent, and a Korean veteran 
(over whose head the third shot was fired)— 
among others—said they “heard” the ahot. 
from the knoll as well as the shots from the 
Depository. Others "saw” smoke on the knoll. 
(Modern guns do emit white gases.) Finally, 
footprints were found behind .the knoll 
fence, and a policeman accosted a suspicious 
person behind the fence, who identified 
himself as a .Secret Service agent, even 
though no agent acknowledges being to that 
area. As Spector does not note, these facte, 
too. put the Kennedy conspiracy finding "in 
perspective."

rv 1
The Committee itself acknowledged that 

the term “conspiracy" had varying meanings 
and might be misunderstood, as Specter oom- 
mente. Yet it also observed, rightly I believe, 
that it had a duty to be candid. If two per­
sons acted in concert to assassinate the Presi­
dent, that was a “conspiracy,” no matter 
how unpleasant the word sounds. To have 
used some euphemistic variation would have 
been an unfortunate attempt to sugarcoat 
the truth. (We have enough of sugarcoatlng 
by government now. That—and not the 
truth—is the cause of mistrust of govern­
ment.) No one who reads the Final Report— 
something I recommend to Specter as well as 
others who seek the truth—will fall to under­
stand the .proper sense in which the term was 
used.

v
Specter is fight to saying that acceptance 

of the acoustical study Implies the acceptance 
of its assaStmation scenario. But he is egre­
giously vjfbhg to describing it. Specter's cal- 
culatlonaMtre, for example, imprecise; they 
apparently do not reflect such distinctions as 
average" running time of the camera, cor­
rected time of the tape, and time of trigger 
pull as opposed to time of Impact. According 
to the acoustical study, the first shot, not 
noted by Specter, occurred around Zapruder 
frame 166-161. It is, as such, consistent with 
Governor Oonnally*s testimony, rejected by 
the Warren Commission, that he heard the 
first shot, reacted to it, but was not Mt by 
it. Connally can. in fact, be seen in the film 
to turn to his right at 162-167. (The startled
reactlon of a little girl can also be seen in 
the background.)

The second shot occurred around 188-191.
Contrary to Bpecter, Connally's wrist is not 
to eight during these frames, much less high 
on his chest; from the configuration of his

bop -— the wrist appears to be on

Bxpert FRJ. testlag to 1864 indicated id 
rifle could bo repeatedly ahM at between 8 
and KM aeoonda, using the telescopic sigh 
Using the open iron eights, however, n 
possible, though difficult, to shoot the weapc 
at a much taster pace. (I did it myself 1 
1 A) With familiarity with the weapon, whic 
Oswald had. accuracy can be added to spee< 
it Is hardly “humanly impossible” to ahot 
the weapon as the acoustical study Indicate 
it was shot.

Specter also misleads Ms readers to dis 
cussing the tree. Apparently, be has nevi 
seen a child run behind a picket feno 
While the child is “obscured.” be can t 
clearly seen as be runs: the mind's eye fill 
to the details. In any event, the trigger pu 
was probably 187, not 191, which is near u 
if not right at, the break to the foliage. Th 
acoustical study, therefore, hardly implie 
“blind firing,” as Bpecter suggests.

VI
When farmer President Ford appeared be 

fore the Committee, be was asked why th 
work of the Warren Commission had falle: 
on such hard times. (80% of the America: 
people do not believe Oswald acted alone. 
The former President said Ite critics had "de 
llberately Or negligently misled the America: 
people by misstating facte and omitting cru 
clal facte . ...” He also noted that peopl 
had not read the Warren Commission's Re 
port. Mr. Specter's piece seems to be follow, 
tog tn that tradition. It also seems to be lesi 
an objective study of the work of the Com­
mittee than an effort to vindicate a father, 
it also calls into question the quality of th< 
staff work that supported Congressman Ed­
gar's dissent to the Committee's conspiracy 
conclusions.

Sincerely yours,
G Robot Blakey, 

i Projetjor of Law,
I (Former Chief Counsel and Staff Dlrec-
I tor, HSCA.) «

□ 1910 
GENERAL leave

Mr. MAVROULES. Mr. Speaker, I ask 
unanimous consent that all Members 
may have 5 legislative days in which to 
revise and extend their remarks and In­
clude extraneous material on the subject 
of the special order speech today by the 
gentleman from New York (Mr. Mub- 
PHY). ____

The SPEAKER. Is there objection to 
the request of the gentleman from Mas­
sachusetts?

There was no objection.

CONFERENCE REPORT ON 
8. 737

Mr. BINGHAM submitted the follow­
ing conference report and statement on 
the bill (6. 737) to provide authority to 
regulate exports, to Improve the effi­
ciencies of export regulation, and to 
minimize interference with the ability 
to engage in commerce.
Oontzkencx Rxpoxt (H. Rept. No. 96-482)

The committee of conference on the dis­
agreeing votes of the two Houses on the 
amendments of the House to the bill (B. 737) 
to provide authority to regulate exports, to 
improve the efficiencies of export regula­
tion, and to minimize interference with the 
ability to engage in commerce, having met, 
after full and free conference, have agreed 
to recommend and do recommend to their 
respective Houses as follows:

That the Senate recede from Ite dlsagree-
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Canada with dangerous nuclear radia­
tion.

They *01 honor those who riot in New 
York but shed not a tear or care a bit 
for the fireman or policeman’# wife who 
mourns her husband, lost in a riot. They 
care not a bit for the pUofe wife and 
family when be is ehot by the terrorist 
but let the terrorist die and they will 
march in mourning. The lef t is the same 
all over the world and the American 
left Identifies with other leftists time 
after time, issue after issue, and tech­
nique after technique. Let the Soviet 
Union call for a ban on testing in the 
atmosphere and the American leftists 
march to the same tune. Now their tune 
is antinuclear and watch them toe that 
line.

An AnU-Israel and pro-PLO stance is 
the Communist Une now. Watch the 
American left line up for Arafat. Of 
course, there will always be some dis­
tinguished and fine Americans who are 
pro-PLO and pro-Arafat or antinuclear. 
I am not speaking of them. X am refer­
ring to that gaggle of anti-American 
leftist minority groups which has con­
sistently marched to the distant drum­
mer from Moscow.

Note how all of these minority groups 
adhere to those who propose violence as 
a solution to problems they perceive to 
confront us. Violence is being made 
credible by the left. Conservatives have 
always opposed it and we continue to 
oppose it. Beware of the traveling 
minorities in and out of our country 
who advance the cause of terrorism and 
violence. Be even more careful of those 
who do it under the guise of civil rights 
or humanitarian concerns.#

PERSONAL EXPLANATION

to the attention of my eoOeagues ta- 
formation that they might find of inter­
est The final report of the committee as 
well as its hearings with appendices are 
available from the Government Printing 
Office. X have received a number of in- 
quires about than. I include in the 
Rxcokd at the conclusion of my remarks 
the address mat Interested persons 
should write and the stock numbers and 
prices for the various volumes.

Mr. Speaker, X also want to report 
to the House on another matter relat­
ing to the work of the committee. I have 
been in touch with the Attorney Gen­
eral’s office and have arranged to meet 
with him to discuss what actions the 
Department of Justice win take in 
response to the recommendations of the 
committee. That meeting win take place 
after the various divisions of the Depart­
ment have had the opportunity to ana­
lyse our work. X win report to the House 
the results of our meeting.

Mr. Speaker, turning again to another 
subject, the work of the committee has 
not been received without controversy. 
That Is to be expected in a free society. X 
regret to inform the House, however, 
that I see a pattern developing of unin­
formed criticism. It is to be particularly 
regretted that some of this criticism 
stems from individuals associated with 
the Warren Commission. The commit­
tee did not reach a harsh judgment on 
the work of the Commission, even though 
the committee concluded that the Com­
mission was in error on the question of 
conspiracy in the President’s death. The 
committee concluded:

[Clritician leveled at the Commission had 
often been biased, unfair, and Inaccurate... 
[T]he Committee believed that the prevail­
ing opinion of the Commission’s performance 
was undeserved. (Final Report, p. 267)
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(Mr. HANLEY asked ahd was given 
permission to extend his remarks at this 
point in the Rxcokd.)
• Mr. HANLEY. Mr. Speaker, I was 
unavoidably detained from Washington 
yesterday afternoon, September 29, on 
official Post Office and Civil Service Com­
mittee business. I returned to the Cham­
ber too late to cast my vote on rollcall 
No. 609, agreeing to the conference re­
port on HH. 111, the Panama Canal Act 
of 1979. Had I been present I would have 
voted "aye."

I would have voted “no" on rollcall No. 
510, the Rousselot amendment to the 
temporary public debt limit bill and 
“aye" on rollcall No. 511, final passage 
of that measure.

The House voted last week on both the 
Panama Canal bill and the public debt 
celling bin. At that time I was present 
in the Chamber and voted for both meas­
ures. I also served as a conferee on the 
Panama Canal HU.#

REPORT OF THE SELECT COMMIT­
TEE ON ASSASSINATIONS

(Mr. STOKES asked and was given 
permission to extend his remarks at this 
point in the Rtcoti and to include ex­
traneous matter.)
• Mr. STOKES. Mr. Speaker, as the 
former chairman of the Select Com­
mittee on Assassinations, X rise to bring

The committee also observed:
Contrary to the allegation# of some critic#, 

the Commission was not part of a sinister 
Government cover-op of the truth. The Com­
mittee found that the Commission acted in 
good faith, and the mistake# it made were 
tboee of men doing the best under difficult 
circumstances. (Pinal Report, p. 288)

Nevertheless, public criticism has 
been made of ths-Ammittee’s report that 
reflects such a profound lack of under­
standing of thcreport and its underly­
ing evidence QKt I am moved to say to 
our critics V« obvious: First read, then 
criticise.

In this connection, I would like to draw 
to the attention of my colleagues three 
recent attacks on the report and replies 
made to them by the committee’s farmer 
chief counsel.

I include the following in the Rscosa: 
A list of the volumes of the committee’s 
report; and a series of articles and let­
ters dealing with the report.
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■ [The Kennedy Assassination] 
Ths Sxcowd-Gvnmam Briniaoia

(By David W. Belin)
On Friday December 98, 1978 the House 

Select Committee on Assassinations pub­
lished its "Summary of Findings and Recom­
mendations." The orchestration was perfect. 
The release was embargoed “until 12:00 mid­
night, Saturday December 3a 1978 or for 
publication in AM. editions of newspapers 
dated Bunday December 81, 1978.”

The Committee wanted to make sure every 
Sunday morning paper in the United States 
carried a front-page story an the dramstlo 
conclusion tt bad reached: There was an un­
seen second gunman standing in an area 
known a# the grassy toon who according to 
the Committee, fired a single shot st Presl-' 
dent Kennedy. Although the sbot wa# from 
close range ~lt missed Pres!dent Kennedy; tt 
missed Governor Connally and everyone else 
tn the presidential limousine; tt even missed 
the limousine. Nevertheless, a second gun­
man automatically mean# that there was a 
conspiracy in the assassination of President 
Kennedy.

To be sure the Committee was forced to 
conclude, as did the Warren Commission, 
that it was Lee Harvey Oswald who fired the 
■bote that struck President Kennedy and 
Governor Connally. This wa# confirmed in 
the first section of the finding# of the House 
Select Committee on Assassinations:

I. Findings of the Select Committee on 
Assassinations in the Assassination of Presi­
dent John F. Kennedy in Dallas, Texas, No­
vember 22.1988. -

A Lee Harvey Oswald fired three abets at 
President John F. Kennedy. The second and 
third shot# he fired struck the President. The 
third shot he fired killed the President.

L President Kennedy was struck by two 
rifle shots fired from behind him.

X The shots that struck President Ken­
nedy from behind were fired from the sixth- 
fioor window of the southeast earner of ths 
Taxa# School Book Depository Building.

8. Lee Harvey Oswald owned tha rifle that 
wa* used to fire the shots from the sixth- 
floor window of the southeast corner of the 
Texa# School Book Depositary Building.

A Lee Harvey Oswald, Micrtly before tbs 
assaaslnstion had access to and was present 
on tha sixth floor of the Texas School Book 
Depositcry Building.

L Lea Harvey Oswald** other actions tend 
to support the conclusion that he assassi­
nated President Ksonedy.

5 03 4^“
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But then th* Committee went on to state, 

In the next division of Its summary:
B. Scientific acoustical evidence establishes 

a high probability that two gunmen fired at 
President John P. Kennedy. .. .

When X first read the newspaper reports 
of the conclusions of the Select Committee, 
I was shocked at how readily the Committee 
had swallowed hook, Une, and sinker, the er­
roneous testimony of the no-called acoustical 
experts. They Initially claimed there was a 
60 per cent possibility that a second gunman 
fired at President Kennedy. Inter, this was 
changed to a 96 per cent possibility. But re­
gardless of whether they say It was a 50 per 
cent possibility or a 96 per cent possibility, 
the truth is to the contrary. There was no 
second gunman.

The only gunman seen at the time of the 
assassination was the gunman whom wit­
nesses saw fire from an upper-story window 
of the Teaxa School Book Depository (TSBD) 
Building. When the police went inside to 
search the building* and came to that window, 
which was located on the southeast corner 
of the sixth floor, they found three cartridge 
cases. As the police continued their search in 
the TSBD Building, they found a nfle, stuck 
between cartons of books near the back stair­
way on the sixth floor. Irrefutable ballistic 
evidence proved that the cartridge cases 
found by the assassination window came 
from that rifle, to the exclusion of all other 
weapons in the world.

Similarly, Inside the presidential limousine 
there were two ballistlcally Identifiable frag­
ments of the bullet that struck President 
Kennedy’s head. These bullet fragments 
came from that rifle. At Parkland Memorial 
Hospital there was a nearly whole bullet that 
dropped off Governor Connally’s stretcher. 
This bullet came from that rifle.

Who owned the rifle? Lee Harvey Oswald. 
It was relatively easy to trace the ownership 
of the rifle through the serial number. The 
Warren Commission obtained copies of the 
order blank used to purchase the rifle through 
the mall. It was In Oswald’s writing. We had 
copies of the postal money order used to pay 
for the rifle. This was in Oswald’s writing. 
The rifle was shipped to Oswald’s poet office 
box.

There was another weapon shipped to that 
same poet office box. This was the pistol used 
In the murder of Dallas Police Officer J. D. 
Tippit, which occurred approximately 45 
minutes after the assassination of President 
Kennedy. I have called the Tippit murder the 
“Rosetta Stone to the solution of President 
Kennedy's murder.”

A Dallas citizen, Johnny Calvin Brewer, 
who worked in a shoestore near the scene of 
the Tippit murder, was the key witness In the 
apprehension of Oswald. He heard about the 
murder on the radio, then heard police sirens 
coming down the street and a suspicious— 
looking person duck Into his store-front area 
and stay there until the police sirens ebbed. 
Then tbe person, who turned out to be Os­
wald, left the shoestore and sneaked into the 
Texas Theater, a few doors away. Brewer 
followed Oswald Into the theater and had 
the cashier call tbe police.

When tbe police arrived, the house lights 
were turned on, and Brewer pointed out 
Oswald. As policemen approached, Oswald 
pulled out a revolver. Carrying a concealed 
gun la a crime. The fact that Oswald had 
such a weapon on his person and drew it 
in those circumstances Is, In itself, highly 
suspicious.

Irrefutable scientific evidence proved that 
this revolver, to the exclusion of all other- 
weapons in the world, was the weapon that 
discharged the cartridge cases that witnesses 
saw tbe murderer of Officer Tippit toes away 
as he left the scene of the murder. In ad­
dition there were six eyewitnesses who saw 
Oswald either at the Tippit murder scene or 
running away from it, gun In hand, and who

conclusively Identified Oswald as the gun­
man.

The combination of Oswald's actions at 
Brewers shoestore and In the theater, 
coupled with the scientific ballistics testi­
mony Unking this gun with the murder, of 
Tippit, coupled with the positive Identifica­
tion by six Independent eyewitnesses, makes 
the solution to the Tippit murder an open- 
and-shut case. There can be no doubt that 
Lee Harvey Oswald killed Officer Tippit.

After Oswald was apprehended at the 
Texas Theater, he was .taken to the Dallas 
police station and Interrogated. Of the School 
Book Depository employees who were Inside 
the building at the time of the assassination, 
Oswald was the only one who fled the build­
ing after the assassination.

During the course of his interrogation, 
Oswald claimed that he did not own the rifle 
found on the sixth floor of the TSBD Build­
ing. As a matter of fact, he claimed he did 
not own any rifle at all. The Warren Com­
mission, in searching Oswald's possessions 
tn a garage in the Dallas suburb of Irving, 
where Marina Oswald was staying with the 
Paine family, found a picture of Oswald with 
a pistol and a rifle and also found a negative 
of the picture, as well as Oswald’s camera. 
When Oswald was confronted with the pic­
ture showing him holding a rifle, he claimed 
that It was not a genuine photo, but rather 
was a composite with bis bead on someone 
elso’s body.

Oswald fled, as he lied about other key 
matters in the course of Ms Interrogation. 
When one has a photographic negative and a 
camera, it can be determined whether or not 
that particular negative came from'that cam­
era. incontrovertible scientific evidence con­
firmed the fact that this picture of Oswald 
holding the rtfle was taken with Oswald's 
camera, to the exclusion of all other cameras 
In the world. (Marina Oswald admitted In 
testimony before the Warren commission 
that she took the picture.)

Meanwhile, no one saw a gunman firing 
from the grassy knoll area—although people 
were in a position to see the grassy knoll area 
at the time of the asasslnatlon. The area was 
searched and do cartridge cases were found. 
Finally, there was the overwhelming medical 
evidence that all the wounds to Governor 
Connally and President Kennedy came from 
bullets fired from behind—not from the right 
front, where the grassy knoll area was lo­
cated. Governor Connally’s physicians unani­
mously agreed. The physicians performing 
tbe autopsy oh President Kennedy unani­
mously agreedt

Assasslnatfim sensationalists were not sat­
isfied wltlxXbeee conduslooa. As a result, in 
1968 Attorney General Ramsey Clark ap­
pointed % panel of physicians to re-examine 
the autopsy photographs, X-rays of President 
Kennedy, various moving pictures and other 
pictures taken at the time of the assassina­
tion, and other evidence pertaining to tbe 
death of President Kennedy. This panel 
Tuumixnoualy coxxfinxMd the findings of the 
Warren Commission that all tbe shots that 
struck President Kennedy came from behind.

Assassination sensationalists still were not 
satisfied, and at the time of tbe Rockefeller 
Commission's Investigation they asserted 
that there were CIA agents consplratcrially 
involved in tbe assassination of President 
Kennedy. In support of this claim, these peo­
ple asserted that a gunman had fired at Pres­
ident Kennedy from the front and that at 
least one shot struck Kennedy from the front. 
An independent panel of physicians selected 
tjy the Rockefeller Commission reviewed tbe 
evidence once again. They unanimously 
reached the same conclusion: All the shots 
that struck President Kennedy and Governor 
Connally came from behind.

The first chairman of the Blouse Select 
Committee on Assassinations—Congressman 
Henry Gonzalez—fell victim to tbe misrepre­
sentations of assassination sensationalists.

asserting, at the outset, that a second gun­
man had fired at President Kennedy. The 
House Select Committee obtained yet an­
other set of experts to re-examine all tbe 
evidence. After months of investigation, the 
House Committee was forced to conclude 
that the Warren Oosnmlaslon was right: all 
the toots that struck Resident Kennedy and 
Governor Connally came from behind and 
ware fired by Lee Harvey Oswald’s rifle from 
the sixth-floor southeast-corner window of 
the TSBD Building.

m the face of this overwhelming array of 
evidence, one wonders why It was that at tbe 
very end of a multi-mllllon-dollar investiga­
tion the House Select Committee suddenly 
adopted the testimony of purported acousti­
cal experts to reach the erroneous conclusion 
that a second1 gunman had fired at President 
Kennedy.

Even if there were not overwhelming evi­
dence to the contrary, common sense would 
question this testimony. It la based on tbe 
single assumption that there was a police 
motorcycle at Deeley Plaza whoee micro­
phone was stuck open and acted as a trans­
mitter to the police radio tape at the Dallas 
police headquarters.

Now, if the microphone bad In fact beer 
stuck open, and If the motorcycle had lx 
fact been located at Dealey Plaza—Ie, a' 
the scene of tbe assassination—not onh 
would the microphone have recorded tin 
shots, but It would have recorded other low 
noises as well. Immediately after the shots 
tbe motorcade accelerated sharply, and pollct 
sirens started blaring as it sped toward Park­
land Memorial Hospital. Yet, on the recordec 
tape there is no sudden sound of motorcycle 
revving up shortly after the so-called Shots 
There is no sudden sound of police siren 
screeching as the motorcade started to rao 
toward Parkland Memorial Hospital. Accord 
Ing to Harold S. Sawyer, a member of th 
House Assassinations Committee, polic 
sirens are not heard on the tape until ap 
proximately two minutes after the sound 
which the acoustical experts claim are th 
shots. Furthermore, when the police siren 
are heard, they appear to be approaching 
cresting, and then receding.

Congresman Sawyer, who has filed a dlsaer 
to the Committee’s “Summary of Finding 
and Recommendations,” also points out ths 
the tape (which la really a “Dlctabelt”) Us 
contains tbe faint sound of chimes. N 
chimes have been found that were in w 
at or near tbe scene of the assassination c 
November 22, 1963. On the other hand, the 
was one set of chimes which was regular 
used at the time of the assassination in t 
area between Dealey Piazza and Parklax 
Memorial Hospital, when this is coupled wl' 
the sequence of tbe sirens' noise and the lx 
of tbe sound of rewlng-up motorcycle ei 
glnes on the tape, it is consistent with tl 
possibility that if there was a motorcyc 
with a stuck microphone, it was located i 
away from the assassination scene, mis pc 
slbtllty Is enhanced because the poll 
recording of channel 1 shows that there w 
Indeed a motorcycle with a stuck micropho 
located far away from Dealey Plaza.

However, let us assume that the tape a 
made from the stuck microphone of a mote 
cycle at Dealey Plaza. Before jumping to t 
conclusion that there was a second gunmi 
one must first examine tbe assumptions up 
which tbe acoustical experts predicated th 
conclusions. If those assumptions wi 
wrong, as they were, then the whole acct 
tlcal bouse of cards collapses.

For Instance, in order for the acousti 
experts' basic assumptions to be correct, y 
have to assume that not only was then 
motorcycle in tbe motorcade whoee tnlc 
phone was stuck open, but that the poll 
man used the other channel, channel 1, : 
stead of channel 2, the channel designs' 
for use by the motorcade. Furthermore, i 
acoustical experts. In performing their te



September 27, '1979 CONGRESSIONAL RECORD—HOUSE H8659
had to assume that the motorcycle was at * 
certain location at the time of the Shota, and 
there is no positive corroborating physical 
evidence tor this assumption.

Moreover there is a fundamental error un­
derlying the entire reconstruction by the 
acoustical experts. It la demonstrated by the 
moving-picture film of the assassination 
taken by amateur photographer Abraham 
Zapruder. Each frame of this film was num­
bered. A reconstruction of the assassination 
by the Warren Commission moved the presi­
dential limousine down the street frame by 
frame. Not only were pictures retaken of this 
movement from the Zapruder location, but 
pictures were also taken through the tele­
scopic sight of the assassination weapon from 
the south east-corner window of the sixth 
floor of the Texas School Book Depository 
Building.

This reconstruction showed that between 
Zapruder frames IM and 810 there was a 
tree whose branches and foliage almost en­
tirely obscured the gunman's view of the 
target, except for a brief opening at frame 
188. Other evidence showed that the foliage 
was virtually the same at the time of the 
reconstruction u ft had been at the time 
of the assassination. After frame 310, there 
was a clear shot. The camera speed was 18.3 
frames per second.

Despite the fact that It was virtually Im­
possible for Oswald to see his target between 
frames 186 and 210, the acoustical tests were 
done on the basic assumption that the shot 
that passed through President Kennedy's 
neck and then struck Governor Connally 
was fired from the sixth floor of the TSBD 
Building between frames 190 and 200 on the 
Zapruder film. (Eventually frame 195 was 
used as a benchmark.) In making this as­
sumption. the Committee staff Ignored the 
common sense practicality that the gunman 
would not fire when his new was almost en­
tirely obstructed by. a large oak tree, and 
when less than one second later there would 
be a clear new of the target—a new that 
would continue without any further ob­
struction. Furthermore, the motorcade was 
moving relatively slowly—only 11 miles an 
hour—and the presidential limousine was 
less than two hundred feet away from the 
assassination window..

In essence, then, the acoustical tests were 
thus constructed to try to force a square 
peg into a round hole by means of highly 
implausible assumptions..

House Committee members Samuel Devine 
and Bob Edgar have, like Congressman 
Sawyer, Indicated that they have great res­
ervations about the second-gunman theory. 
In particular, Congressman Edgar has con­
sulted outside acoustical experts and has 
raised serious questions concerning the con­
spiracy conclusions of the majority of the 
Committee and Its staff.

There Is yet additional evidence which 
refutes the second-gunman Action of the 
House Committee. For Instance, as I sum­
marized during a February 4, 1979, appear­
ance on Meet the Press, there were two Im­
pulses on the tape, approximately a second 
apart, which the acoustical experts say rep­
resented the shot that first struck President 
Kennedy through the back of the neck and 
then passed through to hit Governor Con­
nally. The Impulse on the tape that is at­
tributed to the so-called second gunman- 
assuming that the tape was made In Dealey 
Plaza—Is less than a second from the fatal 
shot that struck President Kennedy's head. 
When one takes Into consideration the rever­
berations of sound bouncing off the high 
buildings surrounding Dealey Plaza, the so- 
called third and fourth shots were really 
the impulse from the fatal shot that struck 
the President and a second impulse from 
the reverberations, similar to the two Im­
pulses from the first shot that struck the 
President.

Since the beginning of the Committee's

Investigation, I have repeatedly offered to 
come to Washington to testify before that 
Committee in an open public hearing. As 
recently as January 19, I offered to go to 
Washington at my own expense to testify and 
stated that I could show that the acoustical 
experts' testimony was wrong. But the Com­
mittee never saw fit to call either one of the 
two Warren Commission counsel assigned to 
what we called Area II: the determination of 
who killed President Kennedy and who killed 
Dallas Police Officer J. D. Tippit. In the course 
of my work with the Warren Commission, I 
had more first-hand contact with the key 
witnesses and the physical evidence than 
anyone else In the world. Moreover, I had 
served in 1976 as Executive Director of the 
Rockefeller Commission investigating the 
CIA. where one of the Issues was whether the 
CIA was consplratorlally Involved tn the as­
sassination of President Kennedy.

I wanted to testify before the Committee 
In an open public hearing for several reasons. 
First, I believed I could make a major con­
tribution because of my background and ex­
perience. Also, I am very much concerned 
about the credibility of government In gen­
eral, including the credibility and standing 
of Congress in the minds of the American 
people. I believed I could help to ensure 
that the investigation and final report of the 
House Select Committee on Assassinations 
would stand the test of history.

To be sure, some of the conclusions of the 
House Committee are accurate: Lee Harvey 
Oswald was the lone gunman who fired the 
shots that struck President Kennedy and 
Governor Connally. He also killed Dallas. Po­
lice officer J. D. Tippit. Neither the CIA, the 
Secret Servlet, nor the Federal Bureau of 
Investigation was in any way consplratorlally 
Involved In the assassination.

However, some at the Committee's conclu­
sions are inaccurate—and particularly the 
conclusion that there was a second gunman 
firing from the grassy knoll. I am confident 
that examination of the entire record of the 
House Committee will not substantiate the 
theory of a second gunman. Nonetheless, 
when this Inaccuracy is ultimately recog­
nized. as I am certain it will be. In no way 
should the issue be forgotten, because the 
real Import of the hasty adoption of the sec­
ond-gunman theory Is not just that the 
Committee was wrong. Rather, the crucial 
Issue is why the Committee was so wrong.

I believe there are two major reasons:
1. Almost all the Investigation and hear­

ings of the Committee were conducted be­
hind closed doorsJThe press did not have 
an opportunity twFrevlew and report to the 
American peopl^what was taking place over 
the twenty-nyy^h multi-mlilion-doUar In­
vestigation. except for some orchestrated 
public hearings in the fall of 1978.

3. The House Select Committee on Assassi­
nations. like virtually all congressional com­
mittees. relied too heavily on Its staff. It was 
the staff that basically led the Committee to 
reach its erroneous second-gunman conclu­
sion.

One may ask why the staff was so intent 
on finding a second gunman when the record 
as a whole did not sustain such a conclusion. 
One possible hypothesis is that this enabled 
It to kill three birds with One stone. From 
a financial standpoint, this conclusion Justi­
fied the expenditure of minions of dollars by 
the Committee. From a psychological stand­
point. It enabled the staff, consciously or sub­
consciously. to Justify its own two years of 
work. From a political standpoint, It took 
the heat off the Committee and its staff, 
because even though they said the FBI and 
the CIA were not involved, they did find a 
conspiracy, and they stated that their al­
leged second gunman was unknown. This 
statement left the door open for continued

attacks on the CIA and the FBI. In essence, 
the finding of a second gunman was a sop to 
the group of assassination sensationalists led 
by Mark Lane and Robert Groden, who for 
years have been proclaiming Oswald's Inno­
cence tn books, radio and television programs, 
and lectures on college campuses across the 
country.

There Is some corroboration for this 
hypothesis as to. why the Committee came to 
the second-gunman conclusion. For Instance, 
there was great deference paid to assassina­
tion sensationalists during the course of the 
entire investigation. There have been sug­
gestions that some of these people may have 
been paid as consultants to the Committee, 
although I do not know this to be the fact. 
However. I do know that one of the leading 
Warren Commission critics. Robert Groden, 
was given the opportunity to testify in an 
open public hearing, and that I was denied 
that same opportunity even though in re­
cent years I have been called the leading 
defender of the Warren Commission report.

In addition, we know that in Its findings 
of conspiracy the Committee and its staff 
made a very important distinction between 
possible pro-Castro and anti-Castro Involve­
ment. With reference to the anti-Castro 
Cuban groups, the Committee's December 29. 
1978 "Summary of Findings and Recommen­
dations” states:

"The Committee be Haves, on the basis of 
the evidence available to It, that antl-Castro 
Cuban groups, as groups, were not involved 
In the assassination of President Kennedy, 
but the available evidence does not preclude 
the possibility that individual members may 
have been involved" [Emphasis supplied|

On the other hand, with reference to In­
volvement of the Cuban government or pro­
Castro groups, the conclusion of the Com­
mittee was'merely that:

“The Committee believes, on the basis of 
the evidence available to it, that the Cuban 
government was not involved In the assassi­
nation of President Kennedy.",

In other words, despite the fact that 
Oswald was an avowed Marxist and for years 
had professed great admiration for Castro 
both orally and In writing, the Committee 
made no reference to the poelbllfty of pro­
Castro groups being Involved, nor did It even 
state that “the available evidence does not 
preclude the possibility that Individual 
members may have been involved," as It did 
with antl-Castro groups. The difference Is 
particularly important In light of the de­
termination by the committee that ft “Is 
unable to Identify the second gunman or the 
extent of the conspiracy."

However, although some people have ex­
pressed to me their belief that all or some 
portions of this hypothesis may be true, it 
is purely a matter of conjecture, and I would 
not adopt it as my own personal view. Rather 
I believe that the staff was just plain wrong, 
and that In its haste to meet various dead­
lines It failed to take into consideration the 
overall record.

When, on November 23. 1975,1 called upon 
Congress to reopen the Warren Commission 
investigation, I stated that there were two 
major reasons underlying my request:

1. I was confident them, as I am now, that 
a thorough Independent investigation would 
reach exactly the same conclusion reached 
by the Warren Commission: the conclusion 
that, beyond a reasonable doubt. Lee Harvey 
Oswald killed both President John F. Ken­
nedy and Dallas Police Officer J. D. Tippit. 
I believed that a confirmation of this correct 
conclusion of the Warren Commission would 
greatly contribute to a rebirth of confidence 
and trust in government.

3. I knew that a thorough and objective 
reopening of the Warren Commission Investi­
gation by Congress would vividly Illustrate 
the processes by which the American publie
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at time* can be milled by Bensatiomllsm, 
demagoguery, end deliberate misrepresenta­
tion of the overall record—technique* that 
have been used by virtually all of the meet 
vocal Warren Commission erKlca. I thought

• that the erpoeure of these techniques to the 
public could be one of the most important 
results of the Congressional reopening of the 
Warren Commission investigation.

Now I must conclude that perhaps an 
•ven more important problem has been ex­
posed—the dangers of secret proceedings 
coupled with excessive reliance on com­
mittee staffs by the Senate and the Bouse.

In a recent column James Reston wrote 
that congressional staffs are like an “unelect­
ed hidden legislature":

Over the years these staff members have 
taken on more and more responsibility— 
so much so that tn some cases they not only 
•eem to assist their masters but to replace 
them. Staff members not only write speeches 
but conduct hearings, draft legislation, write 
committee reports, negotiate conference 
compromises between the Bouse, mobilize 
public opinion, and advise lawmakers on 
how to vote.

In recent years, they have even been con­
ducting investigations at home and abroad, 
sometimes on their own, without the pre­
sence of their chiefs. And with the rise of 
subcommittees, each with its own staff, the 
congressional staff bureaucracy has grown 
even faster than the Civil Services in many 
of the Executive departments.

When the staff of bo important a com­
mittee as the Bouse Select Assassinations 
Committee can allow an investigation of 
nearly two years to culminate in a hasty and 
erroneous conclusion, backed up by badly 
tilted evidence, one'wonders what are the 
unseen consequences for the American 
people if the dozens of . other committee and 
subcommittee staffs, preparing studies on 
national defense, taxes, inflation, education, 
health, agriculture, business, foreign policy, 
etc., are similarly falling to apply high stand­
ards of objectivity and thoroughness In their 
investigations and reports.

I would suggest that the issue of the “hid­
den legislature" is one which must be given 
high priority as we head into the last twenty 
years of this century. The need for examina­
tion is particularly great when the staffs 
operate behind closed doors—without the 
check and balance of a free press.

In reflecting upon my service as counsel 
to the Warren Commission and Executive 
Director of the Rockefeller Commission, I 
have developed a deep conviction that there 
is far too much secrecy in government. It 
was a mistake for the Warren commission 
to hold all of Its hearings in secret. When 
I served as Executive Director of the Rocke­
feller Commission, I requested that the 
Commission bold open meetings whenever 
classified matters were not subject to dis­
cussion. Unfortunately, my request was 
turned down by a majority of the members 
of the Commission.

Our Constitution provides for a checks­
and-balances system of government. We 
all know of the inter-relationships among 
the Executive, Legislative, and Judicial 
Branches. However, during the past two 
hundred years of our history, there has 
developed as an essential part of our free 
society a fourth eheck and balance, which 
interlaces with and reinforces the tradi­
tional Legislative-Executive-Judicial inter­
relationships This fourth check is a free 
press and the ability of that press to report 
to the American people the basic facta about 
the operations of their government.

Toward the end of its investigation, the 
Bouse Committee staff finally contacted me 
and asked that I testify in a nonpublic 
hearing when neither members of the Com­
mittee nor members of the press were pres­
ent. I refused to appear behind closed doors 
and explained my position in a letter to

the Committee and its staff. I concluded 
my letter with the following statement:

“. . . Because I believe so strongly in the 
need for this fourth check and balance. I 
frankly do not want to participate in any 
secret bearing where members of the press 
are not allowed. I do not necessarily believe 
that every single one of your bearings should 
have been open to the public, but I believe 
there is much over the put year and a half 
that could have been open to the public, 
that wu not. Por me to now appear in a 
secret bearing would be to give support to 
a course of action that I believe to be un­
sound and against the best Interests of the 
people in a free society.”

The second-gunman syndrome of the staff 
-of the Bouse Select Committee on Assassina­
tions is demonstrative evidence of how a 
eongrsslonal staff can go wrong. Let us hope 
that even If the final report of the Bouse 
Committee 1* modified, we will have learnt 
a lesson from the initial "Summary of 
Findings and .Recommendations." That les­
son 1* that we should curb the continued 
growth of power of congressional staffs, and 
we should do everything we can to prevent 
excessive secrecy in the operation of our 
government.

Bxlxct Committxx ON
Assassinations.

UjB. Bovsx or Rxpixskntativxs, 
Washington, D.C„ May 4, 1979. 

Enrrox.
National Review, 
New York. N.Y.

Dxab Bis: David Belin's piece, “Kennedy 
Becdnd Assassin. The *6 Million Myth," (Na­
tional Review 27 April 1879) Is right out of 
Lewis Carroll. Like Ube Red Queen, be ap­
parently-believes in verdict before evidence. 
When he read a newspaper report on 28 De­
cember 1878 that the Bouse Select Commit­
tee on Assassinations had concluded that 
there wu a second gunman in Dealey Plaia 
shooting at the President, be knew “the 
truth (wu) to the contrary. There was no 
second gunman."
I find it difficult to understand bow Mr. 

Belin could be so certain of his facts If be had 
not reviewed the evidence on which the Com­
mittee based its Judgment. And be could .not 
have so reviewed It by then, or since/for 
it will not be finally published until the lat­
ter part of June, 1878. An unbiased verdict 
on the work of the Committee, therefore, is 
not yet possible.

When I aosepted the position of Chief 
Counsel to the Select Committee in June of 
1877, I restudiedAhe 1984 Warren Commis­
sion Report mW closely examined its 28 
volumes of supporting documents (the Select 

' Committee wMr'publlsh, along with its final 
report, approximately 30 volumes of ma­
terials on Kennedy and King cues), and I 
did not reach a personal Judgment about 
the validity of the Warren Commission’s 
work until the Committee bad completed 
its investigation.

• It is useful to review the Irresponsibility of 
Belin’s piece. First, Belin suggests the acous­
tical experts hired by the Committee are 
“so-called” or ’purported” experts. Had he 
reviewed the Committee's record be would 
havf found that the expertise of our acousti­
cal witnesses had been repeatedly accepted 
in court, including in the Kent State prose­
cutions and the analysis of the Watergate 

' tapes.
Second, Belin suggests only one gunman 

was “seen." Here he misleads his readers with 
a half truth. A variety of witnesses “beard" 
the Bound of shots from the grassy knoll, 
including a Dallas Police Department officer 
and a Secret Service agent in the motorcade. 
In addition, a young couple on the knoll 
dropped to the ground at the time of the 
third shot from behind them, since they 
knew they were in the second gunman's Une 
of fire. Other*' witnesses saw traces of smoke

rise from the treed area, where the acoustical 
expert* e*y th* third shot wa* fired from 
behind a wooden fence.

The Warren Commission was unwilling to 
credit this testimony in 1964. alnoe it could 
hot then be corroborated. The Acoustical 
evidence developed by the Committee in 
1878 provide* that corroboration: it now 
calls for a new evaluation of the 1904 evi­
dence.

Third, Belin point* out that no cartridge 
case wa* found behind the fence. Why 
should It be when only one shot was fired?

When Oswald fired one shot at General 
Walker on 10 April. 1863. no cartridge case 
was found, yet the Warren Commission did 
not use that fact to doubt the reality of 
the Walker shooting.

Fourth, Belin questions if the tape record­
ing records sounds from Dealey-Plaza. Why 
are crowd noises not audible? The micro­
phone was mechanically insensitive to them. 
Why are not sirens beard immediately after 
the assassination? HB. McLain, the officer 
with the stuck mike, did not leave the Plaza 
with the motorcade, and the sirens do not 
appear on the tape until be catches up with 
it on the Freeway on the way to the hospital. 
Why are chimes heard on the tape? The 
officer’s mike did not have exclusive control 
over the poUoe receiver at headquarters. 
Other mikes, if they had stronger signals, 
could also record sounds on the tape.

Having asked questions about the other 
sounds on the tape, Belin leaves his readers 

. with the suggestion that the stuck mike may 
have been elsewhere, but be does not offer an 
explanation of bow four shots were recorded 
over the mike. No one has suggested that 
someone was shooting somewhere else tn 
Dallas that day. Moreover, the acoustical 
“fingerprint" (the echo structure of the 
supersonic bullet and the muzzle blast of 
the gun in the urban environment of the 
Plaza) of the four shot* is unique, as “sci­
entifically Irrefutable" as handwriting anal­
ysis and the ballistics-evidence be relies on 
in incriminating Oswald. For the sound re­
corded on the tape to have been recorded 
from somewhere other than Dealey Plaza, 
the other place would have to have looked 
exactly like Dealey Plaza. Two people don’t 
have the same handwriting; two guns don’t 
ha^e the same ballistic characteristics. Two 
places do not have the same echo structure. 
• Fifth. Belin says there is no “positive cor­
roborating physical evidence” that the 
motorcycle was In the' right place at the 
right time. Wrong. Photographs of McLain 
in the right place at the right time appear 
In our hearings (Vol. V, pp. 704-20).

Sixth, Belin suggests that Oswald would 
not have fired, as he must have according 
to the acoustical evidence, at Kennedy at Z 
frame 186, since a large oak tree would have 
obstructed his view.

Several pointe need to be made. He mis­
leads his readers when he speaks of a “tree .” 
(Apparently, also, he has never seen a child 
run behind a picket fence. While the child 
is “obstructed”, he can be clearly seen as 
he runs; the mind’s eye fills in the details. 
Still pictures taken through the scope of a 
rifle mislead). In addition, the Committee’s 
ballistics experts suggest the shot would 
probably have been easy to pull off using 
the open iron Bight, a possibility not con­
sidered In 1964. In any event, the acoustical 
evidence, in fact, points to the area around 
Z frame 185-88, not 185, as the time of the 
trigger pull of the second shot. The Warren 
Commission Report (p. 101) prints a photo 
of a break in the foliage at Z frame 186. 
Belin is wrong again.

Seventh, Belin suggests that the two shots 
(numbers three and four) are really one 
shot and Its echo. Here the question of ex­
pertise Is relevant. When Belin qualifies In 

. court as an acoustical expert, I will pay at­
tention .to his expert opinion. Common 
sense, however, provides an easy answer to
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hl* iun*rtlaa. Whit he to really nyinf to 
that the expert* confused an acho with the 
primary sound. The only trouble with that 
suggestion to that ahot number three tram 
the grassy knoll can not be an echo of ahot 
number four from the Depository, alnce even 
a four-year-old child (including my own) 
knowa that primary sounds precede, not 
follow, their echoes.

Kighth, Belin complains that he was not 
permitted to testify before the Committee 
in public session. Several points need io be 
made. Belin was given an opportunity to 
appear in executive session or by deposition. 
If he had chosen to do so, he could have 
made his deposition public. Other Warren 
Commission counsel, including the general 
counsel and his principal assistant, saw 
nothing wrong with this procedure. In addi­
tion, all member* of the Commission and 
the general counsel, in fact, appeared before 
the Committee In public session, something 
Belin knows full well, since he appeared with 
former President Ford, who was a member 
of the Commission. The Committee decided 
not to call Belin as a witness in a public 
session because It felt that he offered little 
to the Committee. He had already written a 
book, which be had forwarded to the Com­
mittee and the staff. (I read it). 'He had 
nothing new to say. He did not play a par­
ticularly key role In the work of the Warren 
Commission.

His testimony about the workings of the 
Commission would have been cumulative. 
The Committee had already heard from most 
of his fellow staff counsel. In addition, his 
testimony about the basic facts of the Ken­
nedy assassination was second hand. The 
Committee preferred to get Its facts first 
hand.

Ninth. Belin oflers a theory as to why the 
Committee went wrong; be blames It on the 
staff, and says that the Committee's work 
was conducted in secret. Several points need 
to be made.

I have been associated with the work of 
Congressional Committees for almoat twenty 
years. No Committee that X have ever worked 
with was more democratic, knowledgeable, 
or more in control of Its own processes than 
the Select Committee on Assassinations. 
Belin libels able men like Btokes and Devine 
of Ohio, Preyer of North Carolina. Dodd and 
McKinney at Connecticut, Fithian of In­
diana, Sawyer of Michigan and Pauntroy of 
the District of Columbia, who labored hard 
on both cases. Indeed, the Select Committee 
was more democratic, knowledgeable, and 
more In control of Its processes than was the 
Warren Commission. I make that Judgment 
based on a two year study of the Warren 
Commission and personal experience with 
the Select Committee. Belin's suggestlorjs_io 
the contrary cannot be similarly rooted In 
fact, alnce he has not made any-study of 
the processes of the Select Committee. His 
theory is like so much of what he complains 
about on the part of Warren Commission 
critics; it is not based on fact.

Belin’s secrecy comment is ironic. The War­
ren Commission held one day of public hear­
ings. Belin, who was Executive Director of 
the Rockefeller Commission, was not able 
to persuade his own Commission to do much 
better. In fact, the Select Committee held 
almost forty days of public hearings on the 
evidence gathered in its two year investiga­
tion of the Kennedy and King cases, where 
the Committee's work was open to public 
scrutiny.

The Committee's investigation was not 
held in public for reasons that are only too 
obvious. The reputations of living and dead 
men were at stake. The Committee bad a 
duty to evaluate Its evidence before it was 
made public. Belin knows the character of 
many of the allegations in the Kennedy case. 
Even though they are irresponsible, they had 
to be checked out, at least confidentially.

Would be have bad the Committee do otter- 
wise?

Finally, it to ironic that the area that 
Belin complains about most was. tn fact, 
largely conducted in public. The tape and 
its preliminary evaluation became public in 
July 1678 at the time of the Committee’* 
refunding. The acoustical reconstruction in 
Dallas in August 1878 was done with the 
media held back, but none the less present. 
The September public hearing that produced 
the 60-50 testimony was the first cut at 
analysis of the August ecoustlceal evidence. 
The work was finished in October and 
November and the 85% plus data developed; 
it was made public In December. The Com­
mittee's processes were deliberate and 
largely public in the crucial area What else 
could the Committee have done?

Lastly, Belin grumbles that the Committee 
"suddenly” made up Ito mind at the last 
minute. The Committee had the basic acous- 
tlcal evidence in July. It knew then what It 
portended. It all depended on what the final 
verdict of the scientists was. That came In 
November. When should the Committee have 
made up its mind, except at the end when 
all the evidence was In?

When President Ford appeared before the 
Committee on 31 September, 1878, accom­
panied by Mr. Belin, he was asked by Con­
gressman Devine why the work of the War­
ren Commission had fallen on such bard 
times. The President Identified three reasons. 
First, he said that Its critics had "deliber­
ately or negligently misled the American 
people by misstating facts and omitting cru­
cial facts. . . ." Second, he suggested that 
many people were cynical. Third, he observed 
that people had not read the report.

I suggest that Mr. Belin should take the 
advice of bls client. The Select Committee 
should be accorded, at least from former 
Warren Commission staff members, better 
treatment than they themselves received. Mr. 
Belin ought to do better in the future.

Sincerely,
O. Roam Buktt, 

Chief Counsel and Staff Director.

Tax Cast Acainst a Cohspixact 
(By David W. Belin)

In early December 1878, the members of 
the House Select Committee on Assassina­
tions were reviewing copies of a preliminary 
draft final report. After nearly two years of 
work and the expenditure of 85A million, 
they had concluded that Dee Harvey Oswald 
was the lone gunman who had killed Presi­
dent Kennedy, woupded Texas Governor John 
Connally and kllM Dallas Police Officer J. D. 
Tippit. There wsSrno conspiracy.

It was a repeat based on an investigation 
conducted in 6post total secrecy, except for 
a few weeks kppubllc hearings carefully or­
chestrated pyG. Robert Blakey, chief coun­
sel of the committee staff.

Less than three weeks later, one of the 
btggest.filp-fiops In recent Congressional his­
tory occurred. The 600-plus-page report was 
rejected and on Friday, December 39, 1878, 
the committee approved a nine-page Sum­
mary cd Findings and Recommendations, 
which concluded that although Oswald was 
the assassin, there was a conspiracy involv­
ing an unseen second gunman. This invisible 
person supposedly fired a single shot from 
an elevated portion of land known as tore 
grassy knoll, located to the right front of the 
Presidential limousine. According to the com­
mittee summary, this ahot missed President 
Kennedy.

Although the location of the claimed sec­
ond gunman was barely 100 feet from the 
Presidential limousine, the Invisible shot also 
missed Governor Oonnally and everyone else 
In the Presidential limousine; It even missed 
the limousine.

Who was this second gunman? Why would 
he fire only onoe? Why were no cartridge

ease* found? The oeenmlttee reverted to Ito 
Cloak of secrecy, merely promising a final 
report around the first of April. That dead­
line was not met because Blakey and the 
remaining member* of the staff were having 
trouble with their second-gunman theory.

Three members of the committee did not 
agree with the second-gunman theory, which 
was predicated almost solely on the testi­
mony of acoustical experts. Earlier an expert 
bad asserted a 50 percent degree of certainty 
in hl* conclusions. In the middle of Decem­
ber. two new experts came forward and de­
clared. Mong with the original expert, that 
they were 85 percent certain. Despite the 
continuing doubts of three members of the 
committee, the change in the experts' opinion 
from 50 percent certainty to 85 percent was 
the cause of the filp-fiop. Having served as 
counsel to the Warren Commission, I know 
that regardless of whether the acoustical ex­
perts say they were 50 percent certain or 85 
percent certain, they are nevertheless wrong: 
There was no second gunman.

In the first place, all of the physical evi­
dence points to a single gunman. Only one 
gunman was seen at the time of the assassi­
nation. and witnesses saw him fire from the 
sixth-floor window of the Texas School Book 
Depository. Three cartridge cases were found 
by that window; a nearly whole bullet was 
found at Parkland Memorial Hospital on Gov­
ernor Connally'* stretcher; and two balllstl- 
eally Identifiable portions of the bullet that 
struck President Kennedy's head were found 
inside the Presidential limousine. Ballistic 
evidence proved those cartridge cases, the 
bullet and the bullet fragments all eame 
from Oswald’* rifle, which was found by the 
back stairway of the sixth floor of the Book 
Depository. His palmprint was on the rifle, 
his fingerprints were on the paper bag used 
to carry the rifle into the building, and he 
matched the physical description given by a 
witness who had seen the gunman take alm 
and fire the last shot.

Oswald had ordered the rifle through the 
mall and had bad it shipped to his post- 
office box In Dallas—the same place his pistol 
had been shipped to. He was apprehended 
with the pistol in his possession. This was 
the weapon he used to kill Dallas Police Offi­
cer J. D. Tippit on November 22, 1863. ap­
proximately 45 minutes after the assassina­
tion of President Kennedy. Six eye witnesses 
conclusively identified Oswald as the gun­
man at the Tippit murder scene, or .the man 
running away from the Tippit murder scene 
with gun in band.

In contrast, the acoustical evidence rests 
on a number of implausible assumptions. 
For instance, if the Dallas police tape Is a 
genuine tape of the assassination, why did 
it not pick up the sound of motorcycle en­
gines revving up as the motorcade sped to­
ward Parkland Hospital? Why are police 
■Irens not Immediately heard? Why does one 
hear the faint sound of chimes, although no 
chimes were found to be In use at or near 
the scene of the assassination?

But even assuming the tape Is genuine, the 
theory of the acoustical experts rests upon 
false assumptions made when the initial 
acoustical data were taken, including the 
location of the motorcycle at the time the 
first shot was fired.

However, I believe there Is an issue of far 
greater importance than the technicalities 
of the acoutlcal evidence. That issue con­
cerns the ramifications of a secret Congres­
sional investigation coupled with excessive 
delegation of power* to the committee staff. 
The House Select Committee on Assassina­
tions Is a microcosm of this compound prob­
lem. The committee’s erroneous conclusion 
concerning Jack Ruby to the most vivid ex­
ample of the pitfalls of this process.

In The New York Times of Sunday. June 3. 
Wendell Rawls Jr. reported that, according 
to a "committee source,” the final report 

-’‘will contend” that Jack Ruby "stalked"
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oonferencs where Oswald was Mag inter­
viewed. "Bad X intended to kin him." Ruby 
said. “I could have pulled my trigg* on 
the spot, because the gun was In my pocket."

The next day. Ruby viewed a telecast from 
Mew York City on white a Rabbi Beligscm 
w prt*cMn< cm Kczmsdy urf th* *bmm!« 
mtton- Ruby found thte wry mortar—•© 
much so that he dressed, went to hit car, and 
drove to the site of the assassination, whsre 
he waited by the wreaths that had already 
been placed there.

Ruby told Rabbi BUverman abqut roading 
in the Bunday newspaper that Jacqueline 
Kennedy might have to come back tor the 
trial of bee Harvey Oswald.

Shortly before 11 am on that Bunday 
morning. Jack Ruby toft his apartment 
building to go to the downtown Western 
Union office to wire some money to one of 
his employees, "little Lynn." who lived in 
Port Worth. According to Rabbi BUverman, 
Ruby was under the impression that Oswald 
had already been transferred from the city 
jail to the county jail, but whan he saw peo­
ple and policemen standing around the 
police station he decided to return after be 
wired the money at Western Union.

The tune stamp at the Western Union 
office was 11:17 am. The ramp from the 
street leading down to the basement where 
Oswald was to get into a vehicle for transfer 
was barely a half block away.

Ruby left the Western Union office, was 
able to gain access to the ramp when a 
policeman's back was turned, and walked 
down the ramp into the basement area 
where members of the press were congre­
gated waiting to see Oswald appear. Within 
a minute or two—at 11:21 AM.—Oswald. 
Banked by police officers, stepped out of the 
basement elevator and walked through the 
dark corridor toward the area where Ruby 
and members of the press were standing.

It all happened vary quickly. Hash bulbs 
and strobe lights temporarily blinded the 
police escort. Ruby generally‘carried a gun, 
and when he saw Oswald, he took out his 
gun and pulled the trigger. The police 
wrestled Ruby to the floor and he cried out, 
“I am Jack Ruby.".

From that first visit on Bov. 26. Rabbi 
BUverman tried to see Ruby once or twice a 
week, until BUverman left Dallas to accept 
a pulpit in Loe Angeles tn July IBM. When­
ever Rabbi Sliverman discussed with Jack 
Ruby why he had shot Oswald, the answer 
tn essence was the same: in order to save 
Mrs. Kennedy from having to come back for 
the trial of Lee Harvey Dewald.
. ' There were many in Dallas—undoubtedly 
a majority—vmo believed that the murder 
of Oswald wte part of an overall conspiracy 
to aasasslni£e President Kennedy. Frankly, 
when X fitakcams to Washington in early 
January 4011 to serve as assistant counsel to 
the Warren Commission. I was anxious to 
investigate such a possibility It was not 
very farfetched to assume that Ruby had 
killed Oswald tn order to silence him, par­
ticularly since Ruby was a person who had 
contacts with organised crime. The possi­
bility wm eefiMUiced became Robert Ken­
nedy as Attorney General bad declared war 
.on the underworld. -

Therefore, on one of wry first tripe to Dal­
las. I visited Rabbi BUverman on an Informal 
basis. We bad become friends the previous 
summer on a study mission to Israel. As one 
friend to another, I toM Rabbi BUverman 
that I recognised that what wae said tn the 
intimacy of bls conversations with his con­
gregant was privileged, but I wondered 
whether or not he bad any question about 
the existence of a peed ble conspiracy. Stiver­
man was unequivocal tn Mb reeponee: “Jack 
Ruby is absolutely Innocent of any con­
spiracy." - •

I asked Rabbi BUverman If he was certain 
of this. “Without a doubt," he replied. Al-

Ree Harvey Oswald from tee koan imme- 
filately of tar the twiniBoa util be killed 
Oswald os the Bunday moraine following 
the aasaasinBUon. and that both Ruby and 
Oswald bad contact* among organised crime 
figures. According to the source, "There to a 
•ubstantiai body of evidence, a web of cir- 
eumstantlal evidence, to connect the death 
of the President to elements of organised 
crime'' and the efforts of organised crime to 
retaliate against President Kennedy and hie 
brother Robert Kennedy who was Attorney 
General and who was undertaking substan­
tial law-enforcement efforts against orga­
nized crime.

Rawls also reported that “the committee 
discounts Ruby's statement before his own 
death that he had killed Oswald so that the 
President's widow would be spared a return 
to Dallas, were she might be forced to relive 
the shattering momenta of the assassination 
as a witness at Oswald's trial." The commit­
tee asserts that the story was “concocted by 
his lawyer."

It seemed the perfect and for the investi­
gation. Who would defend organized crime? 
And, more particularly, who would defend 
Jack Ruby, now that be to dead?

If there had been a full aeries of public 
hearings, the allegations of Ruby's Involve­
ment In a conspiracy oould never have been 
seriously sustained because of the testimony 
of one person—a rabbi who was living in 
Dallas at the time of the assassination and 
who to the most Important living witness 
on the issue of possible involvement of Jack 
Ruby in * conspiracy. -

His name to Rabb! Hillel Silverman. Rabbi 
Silverman did not know Jack Ruby very well 
before the assassination, but after Ruby shot 
Oswald he visited Ruby In the Dallas County 
Jail on an average of once or twice a week 
and became extremely eloee to him. -

During the investigation of the Warren 
Commission, while Ruby was alive. Rabbi 
€llverman could not be called upon to 
testify because the intimate conversations 
between a minister, priest or rabbi and his 
congregant are privileged. However, that pro­
hibition did not necessarily bind the House 
Select Committee on Assassinations, now 
that Ruby to dead. Tot—and this is bard to 
believe, but it is nevertheless true—the com­
mittee staff, during the entire raulttmlUlon- 
dollar, two-year investigation, didnot oven 
try to take Rabbi Silverman's testimony. He 
would have testified had he been called.

■ bet us go back to Monday, Nov. M, 1M3, 
after a weekened of national bereavement 
following the assassination of President 
Kennedy. The place was the Dallas County 
Jail, a relatively unfamiliar location Tor 
Rabbi Hillel BUverman to be called upon 
a member of his Conservative congregation. 
The bronzed, handsome rabbi of Congrega­
tion Ebearth Israel tn Dallas Ad not relish 
-the task. Nevertheless, he felt an Obligation

. to call upon Jack Ruby, who. the day before, 
had committed a murder witnessed by mil­
lions of Americans on their television 
screens.

The name of Jack Ruby's victim, of course, 
was Lee Harvey Oswald, who on the previous 
Prlday, Nov. 22, had murdered both Presi­
dent John P. Kennedy and Dallas Police 
Officer J. D. Tippit.

Police had Started to grill Ruby before he 
was able to reach a lawyer. Ruby told Rabbi 
Silverman that be remembered telling one 
of the policemen on Sunday, “I was atrakl 
that Mrs. Kennedy would be asked to return 
to Dallas for the trial." That single state­
ment contradicts the claim of the House 
committee staff that Ruby's story was "con­
cocted" by his lawyer. .

There are many other tacts which also con­
tradict the conclusions of the House oom- 
snlttee. Por instance, late on Friday mght 
after the assassination. Ruby went to the 
Dallas police station and waited into a press

though tbs toxio M his Woe was most sm- 
vtnetag, and attboogh I iwattaed that Rabbi 
Ravennan bad probably baccate doser to 
Jaak Ruby than any weber person In the 
world, X iMverttieiesB wanted some additional 
corroboration beyond the investigation by 
tbs Warren Commission. The most Obvious 
possibility was a polygraph, or lie-detector, 
examination.

Inside the Warren Commission, we had 
already had a major debate about the use of 
a polygraph. I bad expressed to my colleagues 
my own suspicions that there might have 
been a conspiracy. For instance, the "ringle- 
bullet theory"—which has been corroborated 
by the House Assassination Committee— 
grew out of an attempt on my part to prove 
that there was more than one gunman. 
Eventually, after analysing all of the evi­
dence, X determined that indeed there was 
•only one gunman and that that gunman 
was Lee Harvey Oswald. The medical experts 
of the House Assassination Committee, as 
well as an Independent pane! of medical ex­
perts selected by Attorney General Ramsey 
Clark in 1268 and an independent panel se­
lected by the Rockefeller Commission in 
1876, corroborated the fact that all of the 
Shots that struck President Kennedy and 
Governor Connally came from behind. The 
House committee corroborated the conclu­
sion of the Warren Commission that the 
bullet that struck Governor Connally first 
passed through President Kennedy’s neck.

Another area X was concerned about was 
possible knowledge of conspiracy or involve­
ment in a conspiracy of Marina Oswald, the 
assassin's widow, and Jack Ruby. I wanted 
both to undergo polygraph tests, and I 
started with Marina.

In a written memorandum, I pointed out 
some inconsistencies tn interviews with Ma- 
ylna with the FR J. and I also stated that a 
substantial portion of her testimony was not 
subject to ordinary tests of credibility be­
cause it concerned their life together tn 
Russia. I also said that if under a poly­
graph examination tt was to be shown that 
"Marina had not been truthful in her tes­
timony, ft could throw an entirely new light 
on aspects of the investigation."

A majority of the staff fined up against 
me. One member undertook research to 
prove the limitations of the test and to 
prove that one could not blindly rely upon 
test resuite, in rebuttal, I admitted That the 
polygraph test had limitations, but I argued 
that tn large part those depended upon the 
qualifications and competency of the poly­
graph examiner. Although a lie-detector test 
may not be admissible in a court of law, we 
were not in a legal proceeding but rather we 
were undertaking an investigation, and I 
urged that we use the polygraph as an in­
vestigative sld. Chief Justice Warfen sided 
with the ma'orlty of the staff, and my re­
quest was denied. '

Onoe the commission had decided against 
wring a polygraph for Marina Oswald, I 
knew there was no possibility that the com­
mission would eonrider writing that Jack 
Ruby undergo a Ue-detector test. Therefore, 
1 decided to take matters into my own hands.

Without the knowledge of Chief Justice 
Warren or anyone rise connected with the 
Warren Commission. I approached Rabbi 
BUverman directly. I told him that even 
though he was convinced -that Ruby was 
not involved In a conspiracy in the assas­
sination. the wortd would never be con­
vinced unless Ruby took a polygraph exafh- 
tostiotL I also toM him that the Warren 
commission would never ask Ruhr to sub­
mit to one and that the only way this could 
be acoomplished would be to have Ruby 
Mmsrif make that request of the Warren 
Commission..

Rabtrt BUverman, of course, had a major 
dOemma. On the one hand, Ruby was rep­
resented by legal counsel and It was up to
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tb« lawyer* to O*cid* whether or not Jack 
Kuby would eubmlt to U« teat. Th* tort 
could undermln* th* ItpJ defense of tempo* 
nrj Umnltj. On the other hand. Rabbi BU- 
verman n> absolutely convinced that Buby 
war Innocent of any conspiracy, and he rec­
ognised that a polygraph examination would 
be a major atep in convincing the people of 
Pallas.

In April 1064, Rabbi Bllvennan discussed 
his dilemma with me. My position was very 
simple: Ruby bad already been convicted of 
murder. The situation could not be much 
worse. Surely, if be was Innocent of any oon- 
splracy, be should come forward and volun­
teer to take the test.

Finally. Rabbi Silverman agreed to try to 
persuade Jack Ruby to ask for the test to 
coincide with his testimony before the War­
ren Commission.

On June 1, 1064. Bari Warren and Gerald 
Ford went to the Dallas County Jail to In­
terrogate Jack Ruby. At the beginning of 
Ruby's testimony, be said, "Without a lie- 
detector test on my testimony, my verbal 
statements to you. bow do you know If I am 
telling the truth?"

Bls attorney interrupted him and said, 
“Don't worry about Chat. Jack." But Ruby 
was not to be denied, and he continued, "I 
would like to be able to get a lie-detector 
test or truth serum of what motivated me 
to do what I did at that particular time. .. * 
Now, Mr. Warren, I don’t know If you got 
any confidence In the lie-detector test and 
the truth serum and so on."

Chief Justice Warren replied, "I can't tell 
you just bow much confidence I have in 
it, because it depends ao much on who is 
taking It, and eo forth. But I will say this 
to you. that if you and your counsel want 
any kind of test. X will arrange it for you. I 
would be glad to do that, if you want it. I 
wouldn’t suggest a Ue-detector test to testify 
the truth. We will treat you just the same 
as we do any other witness, but if you want 
such a test, I will arrange for it."

And Ruby replied, “I do want it."
Ruby then described to Chief Justice War­

ren his actions during the weekend of the 
assassination, which culminated in bls kill­
ing Lee Harvey Oswald. Just as he had told 
Rabbi Hillel Silverman about watching the 
eulogy by a rabbi on television on Saturday 
morning, Nov. 23, Ruby told Chief Justice 
Warren:

"He went ahead and eulogized that here 
is a man that fought In every battle, went 
to every country, and had to come back to 
his own country to be shot In the back," and 
Ruby started crying. After regaining his com­
posure, he continued and told about reading 
a letter to Caroline on Bunday morning in 
the newspaper. “And alongside that letter 
on the same sheet of paper was a small com­
ment In the newspaper that, I don’t know 
how it was stated, that Mrs. Kennedy may 
have to come back for the trial of Lee Har- 
very Oswald. That caused me to go like I did. 
I don’t know, Chief Justice, but I got so car­
ried away. And I remember prior to that 
thought that there has never been another 
thought In my mind: I was never malicious 
toward this person. No one else requested me 
to do anything. I never spoke to anyone 
About attempting to do anything. No sub­
versive organization gave me any idea. No 
underworld person made any effort to con­
tact me. It all happened that Bunday morn-

•The last thing I read was that Mrs. Ken­
nedy may have to come back to Dellas for 
Vial for Lee Harvey Oswald, and I don't 
know what bug got ahold of me. I don’t 
know what it is. but Fm going to tell the 
truth word for word."

Ruby then went into some detail about 
how he happened to be at the scene. After 
telling about how he had gone down the 
ramp Into the police station basement. Buby

•aid, “Tou wouldn't have enough time to 
have any conspiracy.... I realist It to » tor- 
ribl* thing I bar* don*, and it wa* a stupid 
thing, but I just was carried away emotion­
ally, do you follow that?”

Chief Justice Warren replied. "Tee; I do 
indeed, every word "

Ruby then continued, "I had the gun in 
my right hip pocket, and impulsively, If that 
t* a correct word here. I saw him, and that 
1* all I can aay. I didn’t care what happened 
to me. I think I used the words, Tou killed 
my President, you rat.’ The next thing, I 
was down on the floor”.

tn the woros oi Ruby, “I wanted to show 
my love for our faith, being of Jewish faith, 
and I never used the term, and I don't want 
to go into that—suddenly the feeling, the 
•motional feeling came within me that some­
one owed this debt to our beloved President 
to save her the ordeal of camming back. I 
don’t know why that came through my 
mind."

As a matter of fact, although Ruby told 
Chief Justice Warren that he didn’t "want to 
go into that," and although Ruby was not 
particularly religious. Rabbi Silverman in a 
conversation with me recently said that when 
he first asked Ruby to tell him what hap­
pened, Ruby replied, T did it for the Jews of 
America."

In his testimony before Chief Justice War­
ren and Gerald Ford, Ruby added one more 
facet to his story: “A fellow whom I sort of 
idolized Is of the Catholic faith and a gam­
bler. Naturally, in my business you meet 
people of various backgrounds.

“And the thought came, we were very cloee, 
and I always thought a lot of him, and I 
knew that Kennedy, being Catholic, I knew 
how heartbroken he was, and even his pic­
ture—of this Mr. McWlllle—Cashed across 
me, because I have a great fondness for him.

"All that blended Into the thing that, like 
a screwball, the way it turned cut, that I 
thought I would sacrifice myself for the few 
momenta of saving Mrs. Kennedy the dls- 
oomforture of coming back to rial."

Warren asked Ruby whether or not he 
knew Oswald. Buby repUed, "No.”

Ruby was asked whether or not be knew 
Dallas Police Officer J. D. Tippit, who was 
murdered 45 minutes after the assassination 
by Oswald. Ruby said there were three Tlp- 
plte on the force, but the one he knew was 
not the one who was murdered on Nov. 22. 
Ruby maintained, "I am as innocent regard­
ing any conspiracy as any of you gentlemen 
in the room, and I don't want anything to be 
run over lightly.”

Blx weeks later, on July 16. 1064. the War­
ren Commission n^ade arrangements to have 
Ruby’s testimony! taken before a court re­
porter while ^jKy was undergoing a Ue- 
detector toot. Ibe man administering the test 
was one of ttofblest in the field, FBI. poly­
graph operator Bell P. Herndon.

At the very last minute, Ruby’s chief coun­
sel, Clayton Fowler, tried to atop the test. He 
told Arlen’ Specter, the representative from 
the Warren Commission, that Ruby had 
changed his mind. But Specter was not to be 
denied and had the court reporter start 
transcribing what was taking place. Reluc­
tantly, Fowler admitted, "He says he's going 
to take this test regardless of this lawyers, 
and he says, 'Ey God, Pm going to take the 
test.’" - _

What did the test show? According to the 
teat results, Ruby's testimony before the 
Warren Commission was the truth. Also, ac­
cording to the test results, Buby answered 
the following questions truthfully:

Q. Did you know Oswald before Nov. 22. 
1063?

A. No.
Q. Did you assist Oswald in the assassina­

tion?
A. No.
Q Between the assassination and the 

shooting, did anybody you know tell you they 
knew Oswald? <

A. No.
Q Did you shoot Oswald In order to silence 

him?
A. No.
O I* everything you told the Warren Com­

mission the entire truth?
A. Tes.
Q Did any foreign Influence cause you to 

•hoot Oswald?
A. No.
Q Did you shoot Oswald because of any 

influence of the underworld?
A. No.
Q Did you shoot Oswald in order to save 

Mrs. Kennedy the ordeal of a trial?
A. Tes.
Q Did you know the Tippit that was 

killed?
A. No.
In 1075 there was a rebirth of interest in 

the whole question of President Kennedy’s 
assassination. A majority of the American 
people, it appeared, did not believe In the 
conclusions of the Warren Commission, and 
in November of that year I called for Con­
gress to reopen the Investigation of the assas­
sination. I said that any thorough, objective 
investigation would reach the same conclu­
sion as the Warren Commission, that Lee 
Harvey Oswald was the lone gunman who 
killed President Kennedy and Officer Tippit. 
I believe that a confirmation of this finding 
would contribute to renewed confidence and 

'trust in government, and I also believed titot 
it would illustrate the processes by which 
the American public at times can be misled 
by sensationalism, demagogy and deliberate 
misrepresentation of the overall record. Vir­
tually all of the Warren Commission critics 
have used such techniques, and I thought 
exposing them to the public could be one 
of the most Important results of the Con­
gressional reopening of the Warren Commis­
sion investigation.

At that time, I also told that an objective, 
thorough investigation would disclose that 
Jack Ruby was innocent of any conspiracy. 
I believed that because of my discussions 
with Rabbi Silverman,'coupled with Ruby’s 
testimony, the absence of any direct evidence 
Unking Ruby with a conspiracy, the results 
of the polygraph examination, and because 
of one other factor, a happenstance, that 
changed the course of history.

Oswald was scheduled to be transferred 
from the city jail at the police station to 
the county jail several blocks down the street 
at approximately 10 am. on Bunday, Nov. 24. 
Before the scheduled transfer, be was to 
undergo the third of a series of Interrogations 
by Capt. Will Fritz, the head of the homicide 
section of the Dallas Police Department, and 
representatives of tbe Secret Service and the 
FBI.

If no one else had joined the group, Oswald 
would have been transferred on schedule, 
long before Jack Ruby ever got downtown. 
However, another person entered tbe Inter­
rogation room Sunday morning. He was 
Postal Inspector Harry D. Holmes, and he 
had helped the FBI. trace the money order 
that Oswald used to purchase tbe rifle with 
which he killed President Kennedy. Holmes 
had also helped tbe FBI. trace the owner­
ship of the post-office box that tbe rifle (and 
the pistol that Oswald used to kill Officer 
Tippit) waa shipped to.

When I took Inspector Holmes’s testimony, 
I asked him: "Just what was the occasion 
of your joining this Interrogation? How did 
you happen to be there?”

Holmes repUed: “I had been in and out 
of Captain Fritz's office on numerous oc­
casions during this two-and-a-hait-day 
period.

“On this morning I had no appointment. 
I actually started to church with my wife. 
I got to church and I said, Tou get out. I am 
going down and see if I can do something 
for Captain Fritz. I imagine he is as sleepy 
as I am.’
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“So X drove dlr»cUj on down to th* ponce 

station and waited la.and m I did. Captain 
Pritt motioned to me and eald, "We are 
getting read? to hare a laet interrogation 
wttb Oswald More we transfer Mtn Co the 
county Jail. Would you Ute to Join usT

“1 eald. 1 would.’"
After Captain Frits, the representative of 

the Secret Service, and also an FBI. agent 
who was present, finished their Interrogation 
of Oswald. Captain Pitta turned to his friend. 
Postal Inspector Botmee and asked whether 
or not Holmes wanted to Interrogate Oswald. 
While the Invitation from Captain Pritt was 
highly unusual. Holmes Jumped at the op­
portunity. and the Interrogation continued 
tor another half hour or more.

Ruby shot Oswald approximately five min­
utes after he. Ruby, left the Western Union 
office. Had Inspector Holmes continued on to 
church with his wife that morning and not 
at the last minute Joined the Interrogation 
session with Oswald, the length of Interroga­
tion would have been shortened by more 
than half an hour. Jack Ruby would never 
have had the opportunity to kill Oswald.

In early June 1978. when I read for the 
first time that the House Committee staff 
was asserting that Ruby may have been In­
volved In a conspiracy and that Ruby’s law­
yers "concocted" his claim that be shot 
Oswald in order to save Mrs. Kennedy the 
ordeal of coming back to Dallas, I Imme­
diately wrote Chairman Louis Stokes of the 
House Select Committee on Assassinations.
As I had done on previous occasion* going 
hack to March 9. 1977,1 asked for an oppor­
tunity to appear before the House Select 
Committee In a public session. Chairman 
Stokes never replied to my initial letter. I 
wrote him and the other members of the
committee on Nov. S3, 1977, and X received a 
reply from Representative Richardson Preyer, 
chairman of the subcommittee dealing wttb 
the assassination of President Kennedy. Con­
gressman Preyer wrote: "Bob Blakey and X 
have discussed your appearance before the 
committee and he assures me that he plans 
So invite you."

Finally, in July 1978, a committee staff 
member requested that X come to Washing­
ton to appear, not before the committee but 
before members of the staff in a dosed hear­
ing. I have had long experience with dosed 
hearings, going back to my service as counsel 
to the Warren Commission in 1964 and in 
1976 as executive director of the Rockefeller 
Commission investigating the CIA. I felt tt 
was a mistake for the Warren Commission to 
bold all of Its hearings tn secret, and X spe­
cifically requested that the Rockefeller Com­
mission hold open meetings when classified 
matters were not under discussion. Unfar-, 
innately, my request was turned down by a 
majority of the members of that commission. 
Like the members of the Warren Commission, 
they wanted everything to be contained in 
one final report rather than released piece­
meal.

I reviewed this by telephone with the staff 
of the House committee and then wrote a 
letter, with copies to each member of the 
committee. In which I declined to appear in a 
secret session. In that letter, I concluded: 
"I happen to have a deep philosophical con­
viction of the need for more openness in gov­
ernment and partlcularty the opportunity 

■'tar a free press to report on the activities of 
government wherever possible.

“I do not necessarily believe that every 
single one of your hearings Should have been 
open to the public, but I believe there is 
much over the past year and a half that could 
have been. For me now to appear in a secret 
hearing would be to give support to a course 
of action that I believe to be unsound and 
against the best interests of the people tn a 
tree society.

"Therefore, X must respectfully decline

your raqusat to appear ail a secret sheeting 
where neither Ike press Mr members ef the 
committee are present. Bowevar, X would be 
eery happy to some to Washington to appear 
in an open public bearing before your entire 
committee. I believe that there io a major 
contribution that I can make because of my 
background and experience (although X am 
naturally disappointed that I was not called 
earlier when I believe X could have made an 
even greater Impact before your investiga­
tion was substantial! completed)."

The committee stall was adamant in its 
position. They said there was not enough 
time for me to appear before the committee, 
and they also refused to have any public 
bearings other than those that were per­
sonally orchestrated by the staff. Finally, in 
an effort to break the logjam, X agreed to 
appear before the staff, rather than the 
committee itself, as long as tt was an open 
hearing. However, from firsthand experience 
with the Warren Commission and Rocke­
feller Commission, X know (and advised the
members of the committee) that the pepoST- 
tians or testimony of witnesses Where com­
mittee members are not present doe* not 
have nearly the Impact that testimony be­
fore the committee Itself does. Blakey re­
fused to allow members of the press to be 
present at a staff meeting; therefore, I did 
not appear. . - .

Assassination sensationalists were permit­
ted to testify before the committee and were 
included in Che limited public bearings.
where they made their many false claims. 
But the committee never gave me a cor­
responding opportunity, although in recent 
years I have been called the leading de­
fender of the Warren Commission Report. I 
know that there were many areas where I 
could have made a major contribution to
the committee If I bad bad the opportunity 
to appear, particularly because of my unique 
position as the only person In the world who 
served with the Warren Commission who 
also served with the Rockefeller Commission 
and saw everything in the files of the CIA 
concerning the aasaseinatiem of President 
Kennedy.

Baaed upon my experience in taro of the 
most widely publicised eoemniaslons of this 
century, it is my firm conviction that one 
•f the greatest dangers to our freedom is 
excessive secrecy and the harm it does to 
the vital check-and-balanee system of a 
democratic society. The way Congressional 
staffs work today compounds the problem. 
These staffs, in the words of James Reston, 
have become Ute "bidden legislatures,’’ op­
erating beneath the surface, conducting in­
vestigations >4" the name of, and on behalf 

-of, elected Atoreeentati vee who themselves 
do not base enough time to perform the 
Work. Tiie^ataff members feed questions to 
the repftmntattves, write reports In the 
name of the representatives, and lead the 
elected' representatives of the people down 
a primrose path until tt is too late for the 
representatives to do anything.

The House-Select Committee on Assassi­
nations is a microcosm of Capitol HUI. I 
know that the report of the House Select 
Committee on Assassinations Will not stand 
the -test of history. When people examine 
^ueh failures as the absence of any testimony 
from Rabbi Silverman,-the failure to consider 
the happenstance of Postal Inspector Holme’s 
missing church that fateful Bunday morning, 
and ail of the other inadequacies that will 
come to tight, the roily of the multimillion­
dollar supersecret investigation will become 
dear to all.

This report should stand as a perpetual 
monument to the tinderbox combination of 
excessive powers of Congressional staffs, 
combined. with the excessive dangers of 
ultrasecret investigations.

Only through a Vibrant free press can 
tbeee dangers be overcome. And they must

be overcome * this emsafiry to to toe able. 
to deal effeottvaiy wttb tea national prob- 
tame facing oar society over tee text *0 
years and beyond.

Ooanrru. law tlcnooL 
Khoo*. tt.T'. Jnly M, m».

Bmroa,
New York Tims* Mafatine, 
New York, N.Y.

Dux Ba: David Belin’s piece (“The Otoe 
Against Conspiracy," 7/16>T9) to out of 
Carroll’s Alice in Wonderland. As the Bed 
Queen, he believes in verdict before evl- 
denee; be “knew" the Select Committee on 
Assassinations was wrong about a second 
gunman shooting a* President Kennedy 
' btfvrt be read the Committee’s Final Report. 
Those Interested tn the truth Should read 
the Report. Mr. Belin’s piece reflects prej­
udice and seriously misleads through half­
truths and false statements.

First, Mr. Belin suggests that the Commit­
tee's finding was based "almost solely" on 
acoustic testing, yet he does not review the 
additional evidence. On the other hand, 
when he observes that the physical evidence
(other than the acoustical) points to a sin­
gle gunman—it does not negate a second 
gunman—he sets out additional testimony. 
Mr. Behn, therefore, presents a distorted 
picture. In fact, a policeman, a Secret Serv­
ice agent, a Korean War veteran (over Whose 
bead the third shot was fired), among oth­
ers, said they heard the knoll shot. Others 
saw smoke. (Modem guns do emit white 
gases.) Footprints were also found behind 
the knoll fence, and a policeman accosted, 
but released an individual behind the fence, 
who Identified himself as a Secret Service 
agent, even though no agents acknowledged 
having been there.

Second, Mr. Belin initially questions: why 
no cartridge case? If only one Shot Is fired, 
no ease need be ejected. Why only one shot? 
Oswald’s third shot htt the president’s head 
.7 of a second after the second gunman fired. 
Obviously, the knoll gunman thought be 
had killed Kennedy. Why fire again? Why 
no motorcycle sounds an the tape nf the 
race to Parkland? They are, in fact, present. 
Why no police sirens heard Immediately? 
The officer remained in the Plaza for a time. 
Why a chime? The police headquarters 
Tecelver could record sounds from more 
than one mike. The chime was elsewhere. 
4*. Belin then suggests the motorcycle 
Itself was elsewhere, even though the Com­
mittee published photos of the officer tn 
the Plaza in the right place at the right time, 
and the authenticity of the tape ts estab­
lished by other scientific evidence, as noted 
fully tn the Report.

Third, questioning the Committee’s rejec­
tion of Ruby’s supposed motive: to save 
Mrs. Kennedy from having to return for a 
trial, Mr. Behn suggests Ruby was not part 
of a conspiracy. Rabbi Silverman's testi­
mony that Ruby told him he had told a 
policeman of the motive before he saw his 
lawyer may be accepted without question. 
(Special Agent Sorrels ao toW the Warren 
Commission.) tn tact, Ruby probably lied 
to his Rabbi and Agent Barrels about hie 
tine motive. But Silverman’s or Sorrel’s tes­
timony Is not determinative of the ultimate 
Issue. The Committee only found that 
Ruby's 1967 note to his second lawyer sug­
gests that the motive was false, not that it 
was wholly fabricated by the first lawyer.

Fourth, to underwrite The motive story. 
Belin points to a 1964 polygraph, given by 
one of the FBI’s "ablest". He does not note 
that Ruby was diagnosed as a “psychotic 
depressive" and that tile PBL in fact, reoom- 
mended that the OomrnlsBioci not rely an 
the test, a recommendation the Warren 
Commission followed. Did Betin fall to read 
the Warren Report, too? Since Belin did not 
read our Report, he also did not know that




